
1

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Municipal Building,
Kingsway,

Widnes.
WA8 7QF

6 October 2015

TO: MEMBERS OF THE HALTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of the Halton 
Borough Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Runcorn Town Hall on 
Wednesday, 14 October 2015 commencing at 6.30 p.m. for the purpose of 
considering and passing such resolution(s) as may be deemed necessary or 
desirable in respect of the matters mentioned in the Agenda.

 

Chief Executive



2

-AGENDA-

Item No. Page No.

1. COUNCIL MINUTES SEE MINUTE 
BOOK

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3. THE MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

5. LEADER'S REPORT

6. MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD SEE MINUTE 
BOOK

a) 3 September 2015  

b) 17 September 2015  

c) 1 October 2015  

7. MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD SEE MINUTE 
BOOK

a) 8 July 2015  

b) 16 September 2015  

8. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 8

9. MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION OF THE COUNCIL

a) 2015/16 Revised Capital Programme (Minute EXB 32 refers)  1 - 8

Executive Board had considered the attached report.

RECOMMENDED: That Council approve revisions to the 
Council’s 2015/16 Capital Programme set out in paragraph 
3.2.

b) Initial Budget Proposals 2016/2017 (Minute EXB 49 refers)  9 - 28

Executive Board considered the attached report.

RECOMMENDED: That Council approve the initial budget 
proposals for 2016/17, as set out in Appendix 1.

c) Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy - (Minute 
REG 27 refers)  

29 - 56



3

Regulatory Committee had considered the attached report.

RECOMMENDED: That Council 

(1) adopt the Statement of Licensing Policy, attached to 
the report, to come into effect immediately following 
the expiry of the current Policy; and 

(2) direct the Operational Director, Legal and Democratic 
Services, to publish the Statement in accordance with 
Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003.

d) Gambling Act 2005 - Statement of Gambling Policy (Minute 
REG 28 refers)  

57 - 74

Regulatory Committee had considered the attached report.

RECOMMENDED: That Council 

(1) adopt the Statement of Gambling Policy, attached to 
the report, to come into effect immediately following 
the expiry of the current Policy; and 

(2) direct the Operational Director, Legal and Democratic 
Services, to publish the Statement in accordance with 
Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 and the 
Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy 
Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006.

e) Designation of Statutory Role of Director of Adult Social 
Services 

 
Following the recent restructuring of the Council’s Senior 
Management Structure, arising from the resignation of the 
Strategic Director, Community Services, it is necessary for 
the Council to designate one of its senior team as its 
“statutory” Director of Adult Social Services in accordance 
with Guidance issued by the Department of Health, a role 
previously performed by the former SD – Community 
Services. 

It is therefore RECOMMENDED: That 
 

1) Susan Wallace Bonner be designated as the Council’s 
“statutory” Director of Adult Social Services as an 
individual who has the knowledge, skills and 
experience to fulfil that role ; and

2) The Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, 
be authorised to make any other consequential 
changes in officer delegations, consequent on that 
restructuring, which need to be done in advance of the 
usual annual review of the Council’s Constitution.



4

10. MINUTES OF THE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARDS 
AND THE BUSINESS EFFICIENCY BOARD

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK

a) Children, Young People and Families  

b) Employment, Learning, Skills and Community  

c) Health  

d) Safer  

e) Environment and Urban Renewal  

f) Corporate Services  

g) Business Efficiency Board  

11. COMMITTEE MINUTES SEE MINUTE 
BOOK

a) Development Control  

b) Regulatory  

c) Appeals Panel  

12. NOTICE OF MOTION 75 - 76

13. PART II  
In this case Council has a discretion to exclude the 

press and public and, in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 
100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, having been 
satisfied that in all the circumstances of the case the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A to the Act.

Please note that if this resolution is passed, members of the 
press and public will be asked to leave the room prior to the 
consideration of the following business.

14. MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION OF THE COUNCIL
a) Signage at The Hive, Widnes Waterfront (Minute EXB 38 

refers)  
77 - 82



5

Executive Board had considered the attached report.

RECOMMENDED: That Council approve a revision to the 
Capital Programme of an additional £100,000, maximum, for 
the construction and erection of a Totem style sign at The 
Hive, Widnes Waterfront.





REPORT TO: Council

DATE: 14 October 2015

REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance

PORTFOLIO: Resources

SUBJECT: 2015/16 Revised Capital Programme

WARD(S): Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek approval to a number of revisions to the Council’s 2015/16 
capital programme. 

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the revisions to the Council’s 2015/16 capital 
programme set out in paragraph 3.2 below, be approved.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 On 03 September 2015 the Executive Board received a report of 
spending against the Council’s revenue budget and capital programme as 
at 30 June 2015. A number of revisions to the 2015/16 capital programme 
were recommended for approval by Council as outlined below.  

3.2 The Council’s 2015/16 capital programme has been revised to reflect a 
number of changes in spending profiles and funding as schemes have 
developed. These are reflected in the revised capital programme 
presented in Appendix 1. The schemes which have been revised within 
the programme are as follows

(i) Former Fairfield Site Schemes
(ii) Fleet Replacements
(iii) Surface Water Management
(iv) ALD Bungalows
(v) Grangeway Court

4.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

5.1 There are no direct implications; however, the capital programme 
supports the delivery and achievement of all the Council’s priorities.



6.0 RISK ANALYSIS

6.1 There are a number of financial risks within the capital programme. 
However, the Council has internal controls and processes in place to 
ensure that spending remains in line with budget.

6.2 In preparing the 2015/16 budget and capital programme, a register of 
significant financial risks was prepared which has been updated as at 30 
June 2015

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

7.1 None.

8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1072

8.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.



APPENDIX 1
Capital Expenditure to 30 June 2015

2015/16 Cumulative Capital Allocation

Directorate/Department

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date

£’000

Quarter 1

£’000

Quarter 2

£’000

Quarter 3

£’000

Quarter 4

£’000

Capital 
Allocation
2016/17

£’000

Capital
Allocation
2017/18

£’000

Children & Enterprise Directorate

Schools Related
Asset Management Data 1 1 3 4 5 0 0
Fire Compartmentation 0 0 10 40 62 0 0
Capital Repairs 96 96 600 800 1,015 0 0
Asbestos Management 0 0 5 10 20 0 0
Schools Access Initiative 4 4 10 30 75 0 0
Education Programme (General) 3 3 10 40 70 0 0
Basic Need Projects 0 0 0 0 0 936 71
School Modernisation Projects 0 0 100 350 460 0 0
Inglefield 0 0 3 6 12 0 0
St Bedes Junior School 4 4 4 4 28 0 0
Ashley School 0 0 11 11 31 0 0
Early Education for 2 Year Olds 5 5 75 100 183 0 0
Universal Infant School Meals 0 0 0 2 2 0 0
Halebank 0 0 0 0 40 0 0
Responsible Bodies Bids 0 0 100 250 475 0 0
St Edwards Catholic Primary 0 0 4 22 35 0 0
Fairfield Primary School 0 0 0 10 1,898 243 0



2015/16 Cumulative Capital Allocation

Directorate/Department

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date

£’000

Quarter 1

£’000

Quarter 2

£’000

Quarter 3

£’000

Quarter 4

£’000

Capital 
Allocation
2016/17

£’000

Capital
Allocation
2017/18

£’000

Economy, Enterprise & Property
Castlefields Regeneration 19 19 40 60 635 0 0
3MG 121 121 1,000 3,000 3,493 0 0
Widnes Waterfront 0 0 300 600 1,000 0 0
Johnsons Lane Infrastructure 0 0 150 300 450 0 0
Decontamination of Land 0 0 0 6 6 0 0
SciTech Daresbury – Tech Space 5 5 1,704 1,704 10,965 0 0
Former Crosville Site 25 25 189 354 518 0 0
Former Fairfield Site - Contingency 9 9 27 45 64 0 0
Former Fairfield Site - Highways 2 2 19 36 53 66 0
Former Fairfield Site – New Cemetery 1 1 340 678 1,017 336 70
Police Station Site 0 0 117 234 350 0 0
Travellers Site Warrington Road 604 604 1,286 1,286 1,286 0 0
Widnes Town Centre Initiative 0 0 7 14 21 0 0
Lowerhouse Lane Depot - Upgrade 4 4 15 26 38 0 0
Equality Act Improvement Works 10 10 90 170 250 300 300

Total Children & Enterprise 913 913 6,219 10,192 24,557 1,881 441



2015/16 Cumulative Capital Allocation

Directorate/Department

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date

£’000

Quarter 1

£’000

Quarter 2

£’000

Quarter 3

£’000

Quarter 4

£’000

Capital 
Allocation
2016/17

£’000

Capital
Allocation
2017/18

£’000

Policy & Resources Directorate
ICT & Support Services
ICT Rolling Programme 117 117 1,317 1,517 1,719 1,100 1,100

Policy, Planning & Transportation
Local Transport Plan
Bridge & Highway Maintenance 375 405 1,013 1,620 2,228 2,043 1,981
Integrated Transport & Network 
Management 125 130 390 650 908 908 908

Street Lighting – Structural 
Maintenance 81 100 1,700 3,300 4,900 200 200

STEPS Programme 0 0 178 356 534 540 0
Surface Water Management 0 10 40 80 122 0 0
S106 Schemes 4 5 131 257 384 0 0

Mersey Gateway
Land Acquisitions 211 211 920 1,561 10,125 1,461 567
Development Costs 439 439 1,238 1,946 2,843 2,858 2,153
Loan Interest During Construction 896 896 1,817 2,738 3,587 3,989 356
Construction Costs 0 0 0 0 0 70,000 32,500
Mersey Gateway Liquidity Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000

Other
Risk Management 0 10 40 80 120 120 120
Fleet Replacements 283 300 665 806 2,174 1,940 624
Total Policy & Resources 2,531 2,623 9,449 14,911 29,644 85,159 50,509



2015/16 Cumulative Capital Allocation

Directorate/Department

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date

£’000

Quarter 1

£’000

Quarter 2

£’000

Quarter 3

£’000

Quarter 4

£’000

Capital 
Allocation
2016/17

£’000

Capital
Allocation
2017/18

£’000

Communities Directorate

Community and Environment 
Stadium Minor Works 18 20 25 30 42 30 30
Widnes Recreation Site 524 530 741 741 741 0 0
Norton Priory 82 100 1,200 2,300 3,426 151 190
Norton Priory Biomass Boiler 0 0 0 0 140 0 0
Open Spaces Scheme 15 15 18 18 18 0 0
Children’s Playground Equipment 53 60 86 112 138 65 65
Upton Improvements 0 0 6 9 13 0 0
Crow Wood Play Area 0 0 6 9 13 0 0
Runcorn Hill Park 199 200 250 250 250 0 0
Runcorn Cemetery Extension 0 0 5 7 9 0 0
Widnes Crematorium Cremators 151 109 109 109 109 0 0
Landfill Tax Credit Schemes 0 0 120 240 340 340 340
Litter Bins 0 0 10 15 20 20 20

Commissioning & Complex Care
ALD Bungalows 1 0 200 300 200 200 0
Halton Carers Centre Refurbishment 0 0 10 20 34 0 0
Grangeway Court 0 0 174 260 360 40 0
Lifeline Telecare Upgrade 0 0 30 60 100 0 0
Community Meals Oven 0 0 0 0 10 0 0
Social Care Capital Grant 0 0 137 274 413 0 0
The Halton Brew 0 0 5 10 16 0 0



2015/16 Cumulative Capital Allocation

Directorate/Department

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date

£’000

Quarter 1

£’000

Quarter 2

£’000

Quarter 3

£’000

Quarter 4

£’000

Capital 
Allocation
2016/17

£’000

Capital
Allocation
2017/18

£’000

Prevention & Assessment
Disabled Facilities Grant 35 100 250 375 500 0 0
Stairlifts (Adaptations Initiative) 36 60 125 187 250 0 0
RSL Adaptations (Joint Funding) 17 50 100 150 200 0 0

Total Communities Directorate 1,131 1,244 3,607 5,476 7,342 846 645

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 4,575 4,780 19,275 30,579 61,543 87,886 51,595
Slippage (20%) -12,309 -3,577 -1,819

12,309 3,577
TOTAL 4,575 4,780 19,275 30,579 49,234 96,618 53,353





REPORT TO: Executive Board

DATE: 1st October 2015

REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance

PORTFOLIO: Resources

SUBJECT: Initial Budget Proposals 2016/17

WARD(S): Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To recommend to Council initial revenue budget proposals for 2016/17. 

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That Council approve the initial budget proposals 
for 2016/17 set out in Appendix 1.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecasts potential revenue 
budget funding gaps for the Council, of approximately £16m in 2016/17 
and £9m in 2017/18. 
 

3.2 Budget saving proposals for 2016/17 are currently being developed by 
the Budget Working Group.

3.3 The first set of these proposals is listed in Appendix 1. It is proposed to 
implement these immediately in order to also achieve a part-year saving 
in 2015/16, which will assist in keeping the Council’s overall spending in 
line with budget. In addition, a number of the proposals will take time to 
implement and therefore commencing the process as soon as possible 
will assist with ensuring they are fully implemented by 1st April 2016. 
Appendix 1 also presents the impact in 2017/18 of certain of the savings 
proposals

3.4 The following table summarises the budget proposals of the Budget 
Working Group and identifies the remaining forecast budget gaps. 

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Total
£m

Forecast Budget Gaps as per MTFS 16.0 9.0 25.0

Less Initial Budget Savings Proposals;
Community & Resources Directorate -3.8 +0.9 -2.9
People & Economy Directorate -4.0 +3.0 -1.0

Remaining Forecast Budget Gaps 8.2 12.9 21.1



3.5 The Government will announce its Grant Settlement for Local 
Government in late December, at which point the Council’s actual budget 
gap for 2016/17 will be identified, along with indications for 2017/18 and 
2018/19.
 

3.6 A second set of budget saving proposals is currently being developed by 
the Budget Working Group, which will be recommended to Council on 9th 
December 2015. Further saving proposals to enable the Council to 
deliver a balanced budget for 2016/17, will then be recommended to 
Council on 2nd March 2016.

4.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The revenue budget supports the Council in achieving the aims and 
objectives set out in the Community Strategy for Halton and the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

5.1 The revenue budget supports the delivery and achievement of all the 
Council’s priorities. The budget proposals listed in Appendix 1 have been 
prepared in consideration of all the Council’s priorities.

6.0 RISK ANALYSIS

6.1 Failure to set a balanced budget would put the Council in breach of 
statutory requirements. The budget is prepared in accordance with 
detailed guidance and a timetable, to ensure statutory requirements are 
met and a balanced budget is prepared which aligns resources with 
corporate objectives.

7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

7.1 None.

8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1072

8.1 None.



APPENDIX 1

ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION/ 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

 
INCOME GENERATION OPPORTUNITIES
 
1
 
 

Community & 
Environment

Review charges and staffing at Stadium 
Fitness. 

Income 
294

Staffing 
190

20 0 P D

2 Community & 
Environment

Community Centres - Continue to improve 
efficiencies and increase income – this 
year has seen an improvement in the 
operating costs of this service area, 
further work is needed to continue this 
improvement.

205 25 0 P D

3 Community & 
Environment
 

Select Security Stadium – additional 
income from increasing the rent for major 
tenants above inflation.

146 60 0 P D

4 Community & 
Environment

Registration Services – additional income 
from increasing charges above the rate of 
inflation.

7 10 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION/ 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

5
 
 
 

Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Schools Forum contribution towards the 
cost of Internal Audit services provided for 
schools. A similar contribution was 
provided for 2015/16.  

20 20 -20 T M

6 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division
 

Increased income to be generated from 
having further suppliers sign up to the 
Invoice Early Payment Scheme.

30 5 0 P D

7 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division
 

Recovery of credit notes from a review of 
supplier accounts. The review has already 
recovered £100,000 relating to previous 
years as a one-off saving. A target of 
£10,000 will also be set for on-going 
annual reviews.
 

n/a

n/a

10

100

0

-100

P

T

D

D

8 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Income from increasing the charges to 
clients for the provision of the 
Appointeeship Scheme from £6 to £7 per 
week. The new charge will still remain 
comparable with those of other North 
West councils.
 

76 15 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION/ 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

9 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Increased income from schools buying 
back the Finance Department SLA.

227 5 0 P D

10 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Income recovered by Direct Payment 
audits to be utilised to fund the Direct 
Payments Team, with any balance 
returned to the Community Care budget.

151 151 0 P D

11
 
 

ICT & Supp Dept/ 
ICT Services

Additional income to be generated from 
provision of ICT services to external 
partners.

1,400 100 0 P D

12 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/ 
Legal Services

Additional income to be generated from 
SLAs with schools for the provision of 
legal services.

54 10 0 P D

SHARED / COLLABORATIVE SERVICES 

13
 
 

PPT Dept/
Policy & Dev Div

Operational saving from a shared service 
arrangement with Knowsley MBC for the 
provision of Building Control Services. 
 

n/a 6 -6 T D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION/ 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITIES

14
 

Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Restructuring and retendering of 
insurance policies in accordance with the 
risk and insurance strategy

1,041 125 0 P D

15 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Reduced support and maintenance costs 
arising from the renewal of cash 
collection kiosks. 

14 7 0 P D

16 Community & 
Environment

Reduction in the cost of the contract for 
bar provisions. 

175 10 0 P D

EFFICIENCY OPPORTUNITIES

17 Finance Dept/ 
Audit & Op 
Finance Division

Voluntary reductions in hours agreed for 
three staff within the Audit and 
Operational Finance Division.

74 14 0 P D

18 Finance Dept/ 
Procurement Div
 

Deletion of two vacant HBC5 Contract 
Officer posts within the Procurement 
Division.

56 56 0 P D

19 HR/EPO/Policy
 
 

Management restructuring to bring 
together HR, Learning & Development, 
Efficiency Programme Office and P&R 
Policy and Performance into one Division.

2,300 216 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION / 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

20 ICT & Supp 
Dept/ ICT and 
Support Svcs 
Divisions

Organisational restructuring within ICT 
and Support Services Department.

5,382 100 0 P D

21 ICT & Supp 
Dept/ Support 
Services Division
 

Reduction in various non-staffing budgets 
relating to Councilwide purchases of 
stationery, printing, postages, furniture, 
equipment etc. 

600 100 0 P D

22 Public Protection Utilising previous years’ underspends to 
provide a one-off saving for 2016/17.

724 500 -500 T M

23 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/ 
Legal Services

Reduction in the Legal Services books 
and publications budget.

15 10 0 P D

24 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/ 
Customer 
Intelligence Unit
 

Delete a vacant HBC6 Research Officer 
post within the Customer Intelligence Unit.

32 32 0 P D

25 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/ 
Customer 
Intelligence Unit
 

Cease the external contract for website 
design as now undertaken in-house.

20 20 0 P M



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION / 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

26 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/ 
Comms & Mktg
 

Balance of a previous year’s part-year 
saving item within Communications & 
Marketing.

6 6 0 P D

27 Legal & Dem 
Services Dept/
Civic Activities
 

Reduction in Civic Activities hospitality 
budget.
 

10 4 0 P D

28 PPT Dept/
Traffic Division
 

Cease the external decorative lighting on 
the Silver Jubilee Bridge.

25 25 0 P D

29 Community & 
Environment
 

Review of Leisure Centres. 1,670 250 0 P D

30
 
 

Community & 
Environment

Brindley - continue with recent improved 
efficiency savings and maximise income 
streams.

157 50 0 P D

31 Community & 
Environment

Waste – introduce a Food Waste 
Collection Service to deliver savings by 
diverting food waste from land fill. This will 
require invest to save funding in order to 
use an alternative waste treatment facility.

1,799 100 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION / 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

OTHER BUDGET SAVINGS

32 Finance Dept/ 
Financial Mgt Div

Reduction in the capital financing budget 
given exceptional low borrowing cost 
rates, returns on investments and capital 
programme requirements.

2,970 650 0 P D

33
 
 

Finance Dept /
Revs, Bens & 
Customer Svcs 
Division

One-off saving from unspent New 
Burdens transitional grant funding 
provided for changes to business rates, 
council tax and benefit arrangements, 
which have instead been implemented 
utilising existing staff resources. 

200 200 -200 T D

34 Finance Dept/ 
Financial Mgt 
Division

Deletion of the budget for technical 
consultancy support for Asset 4000 
computer system.

5 5 0 P D

35 Community & 
Environment

The specification for environmental 
maintenance will be reduced and re-
written and the Open Spaces service will 
be restructured.

2,953 200 0 P D

36 Community & 
Environment

Deletion of a vacant Arts Development 
Officer post.

84 50 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION / 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

37 Community & 
Environment

There has historically been a significant 
underspend each year against the total 
Area Forum budget. It is proposed to 
reduce the funding but this would still 
allow Area Forums to support community 
projects within individual wards.
 

550 150 0 P D

38
 
 

Community & 
Environment

Review the Councils reward and incentive 
scheme for Waste Recycling

123 80 0 P D

39 Community & 
Environment

Restructure the Community Development 
Team with the deletion of two vacant part-
time posts.  

176 20 0 P D

40 Community & 
Environment

Reduce the Council’s grant to Norton 
Priory Museum Trust and the Council 
provides some professional advice and 
assistance to market the services.

222 50 0 P D

41 Community & 
Environment

Review Civic and Café catering provision 
in order to bring about a number of 
efficiency and income improvements.

20 20 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVINGDEPARTMENT/ 

DIVISION / 
SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

42
 
 

PPT Dept/ 
Logistics 
Division/ 
Transport Co-ord
 
 

Reduction of 5% in the funding provided 
for bus support. This will have a direct 
impact upon supported bus services and 
thereby the LTP stated priority of public 
transport provision and the MG 
Sustainable Transport Strategy.
 

560 28 0 P D

43 PPT Dept/
Traffic Division
 

Reduction in street lighting energy and 
maintenance costs, through introduction 
of LED light bulbs.
 

1,383 100 0 P D

44 PPT Dept/
Traffic Division
 

Release of a one-off reserve held in 
relation to previous years undercharge for 
street lighting electricity charges, which is 
now time expired.
 

100 100 -100 T D

45 Subscriptions Cease the Council’s LGIU subscription. 12 12 0 P D

2,901

926

0

-926

P

T

 
TOTAL PERMANENT

 
TOTAL TEMPORARY (ONE-OFF)

 

GRAND TOTAL

 

3,827 -926

 



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/
SERVICE 

AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

PEOPLE AND ECONOMY DIRECTORATE

INCOME GENERATION OPPORTUNITIES

1 Economy 
Enterprise & 
Property

To charge a levy for providing funding 
advice to external organisations
 

11 5 0 P D

2
 

Economy 
Enterprise & 
Property
 

To charge a levy for providing business 
advice on business support projects
 

n/a 5 0 P D

3 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision

School and Setting Improvement Officers – 
generation of income from selling school 
improvement services to academies.

n/a 3 0 P D

4 Children’s 
Social Care: 
Early 
Intervention

Increase charging for activities in children’s 
centres provided by commissioned service  
for Music and Movement increase from £1 
to £2 – aim for this service to be fully self-
sufficient via charging 
 

9 7 0 P M



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/
SERVICE 

AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)
5 Commissioning 

& Complex 
Needs

Income from charging Adults with a 
Learning Disability in Supported 
Accommodation who have never been 
charged under preserved rights.

N/A 50 0 P D

6
 

Commissioning 
& Complex 
Needs

Income from initially a one-year contract for 
the delivery of the Positive Behaviour 
Support Service for Cheshire East and 
Sefton councils.

244 100 -100 T D

7 Commissioning 
& Complex 
Needs

Income from initially a one year contract with 
Riverside College for providing placements 
within Community Day Services based at 
Simms Cross.

N/A 40 -40 T D

8 Prevention & 
Assessment

Undertake a review of Intermediate Care for 
Warrington Borough Council. 

N/A 4 -4 T D

SHARED / COLLABORATIVE SERVICES

9 Communities Deletion of Strategic Director post. 143 143 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/

SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)
10 Commissioning 

& Complex 
Needs

Contribution from the DCLG Transitional 
Challenge Fund for the provision of a 
Strategic Commissioning Manager across 
the Liverpool City Region. 

70 70 -70 T D

11
 

Prevention & 
Assessment

Contribution from Sefton Council for 
provision of a Supporting People 
Development Manager.

46 46 -46 T D

12 Prevention & 
Assessment

Contribution from Sefton Council for 
provision of a Divisional Manager, Mental 
Health Services.

74 35 -35 T D

 
EFFICIENCY OPPORTUNITIES
 
13 Commissioning 

& Complex 
Needs

Reduction in cost of the YMCA contract. 
 

275 133 0 P D

14 Commissioning 
& Complex 
Needs

Supporting People efficiencies. 300 300 -300 T D

15 Prevention & 
Assessment

Cease use of the ADL Smartcare 
computer software, resulting in an annual 
software licence cost saving.

15 15 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/

SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)
16 Prevention and 

Assessment
Review premium pay for Community 
Warden Service in line with other direct 
care services.

36 22 0 P D

17
 

Commissioning 
& Complex 
needs

Delete the vacant Representations post. 50 50 0 P D

18 Economy 
Enterprise & 
Property
 

Property Services Restructure 227 60 0 P D/M

19 Economy 
Enterprise & 
Property

Reduce Markets Promotions Budget 30 20 0 P D

20 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 14-19 
Division

Delete the vacant Young People 
Caseworker post from the Participation 
Strategy structure.  

248 34 0 P M

21 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: Policy 
Provision & 
Performance 
Division

Reduction in Supplies and Services 
budget within Transforming Children’s 
Environment.

37 37 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/

SERVICE AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)
22 Education 

Inclusion and 
Provision: Policy 
Provision & 
Performance 
Division

Reduction Supplies and Services budget 
for Childcare Sustainability.

5 5 0 P D

23
 

Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: Policy 
Provision & 
Performance 
Division
 

Management Restructure and reduction in 
post (Play Resource Team)

133 50 0 P M

24 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: Policy 
Provision & 
Performance 
Division
 

Reduction in Professional Fees Budget 28 18 0 P D

25 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: Policy 
Provision & 
Performance 
Division

Management restructure – reduction in 
post (HBC9) within Policy & Performance 
Team

349 46 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT
/ DIVISION/
SERVICE 

AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000
2016/17

£’000
2017/18

£’000

PER
M OR
TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)
26 Education 

Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Education
 

Reduction in allocation for training and 
statutory school improvement intervention

113 40 0 P M

27
 

Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Inclusion 0-25
Transition
 

Reduction in advertising budget relating to 
Transition, as now funded by Dedicated 
Schools Grant.
 

10 2 0 P D

28 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Cognition and 
Learning
 

Reduction in the supplies and services 
budget for Cognition and Learning.
 

5 3 0 P D

29 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Autistic 
Spectrum 
Disorder
 

Reduction in the external training budget for 
Communication and Language.
 

7 5 0 P D



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT/ 
DIVISION/
SERVICE 

AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000 2016/17
£’000

2017/18
£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

30 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Special 
Education 
Needs 
 

Reduction in the supplies and services 
budget for the Parent Partnership for 
children with SEN.
 

4 2 0 P D

31 Education 
Inclusion and 
Provision: 
Educational 
Welfare
 

Reduction in the supplies and services 
budget relating to training and development 
for the Education Welfare Service.
 

10 5 0 P M

 
OTHER BUDGET SAVINGS
 
32 Economy 

Enterprise & 
Property
 

To reduce the matching funding available 
for Halton’s European Projects and reduce 
the number of bids

n/a 125 -125 T D

33 Child 
Protection Unit 
 

EVR - Deletion of Divisional Manager 
(Safeguarding) post
 

80 30 0 P M



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMENT
/ DIVISION/
SERVICE 

AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000 2016/17
£’000

2017/18
£’000

PERM 
OR

TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

34 Children’s 
Social Care:  
Children’s 
Centres
 

Review services commissioned – increase 
other agencies contribution and generate 
income

- Adult Learning – reduce services 
provided in centres as can still 
access other provision within 
Borough

 
- Fit4Safety (home safety equipment) 

Cheshire Fire & Rescue – proposal to 
transfer costs to Health Improvement 
Team/Public Health.

 
- Physical Activity Play in Children’s 

Centre – contract terminated because 
of performance 

103

8

11

12

8

11

0

0

0

P

P

P

M

M

M

35 Commissioning 
& Complex 
Needs

One-off saving from the release of the un-
committed balance of funding set aside for 
implementation of the Care Financials 
computer system.

370 300 -300 T D

36 Commissioning 
& Complex 
Needs

Reductions in the Social Worker and 
Surestart training budgets.

127 68 0 P D

37 Prevention & 
Assessment
 

One-off contribution from Complex Care 
Pooled budget funding under the Section 
256 agreement with NHS.

2,979 1,600 -1,600 T M



ESTIMATED
BUDGET SAVING

DEPARTMEN
T/ DIVISION/

SERVICE 
AREA

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL TOTAL
BUDGET

£’000 2016/17
£’000

2017/18
£’000

PER
M OR
TEMP

(P / T)

MANDATORY OR 
DISCRETIONARY 

SERVICE 
AFFECTED

(M / D)

38 Prevention & 
Assessment

One-off savings achieved as part of the 
implementation of the Care Act.

997 183 -183 T M

39 Prevention and 
Assessment
                                                                                                                                                                         

Review all voluntary sector contracts, 
including adult social care and voluntary 
grants.

700 70 0 P M/D

40 Prevention and 
Assessment

Deletion of a vacant Commissioning post. 50 50 0 P D

41 Communities One-off reduction in bad debt provisions to 
align with the levels of outstanding debts.

711 200 -200 T M

1,009

3,003

0

-3,003

P

T

 
TOTAL PERMANENT

 
TOTAL TEMPORARY (ONE-OFF)

 
 

 GRAND TOTAL
 

 

4,012 -3,003

 



REPORT TO: Council

DATE: 14 October 2015

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Policy & Resources

PORTFOLIO: Resources

SUBJECT: Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing
 Policy

WARDS: Boroughwide

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To adopt the Statement of Licensing Policy.

2. RECOMMENDED: That the Council:
(1) adopts the Statement of Licensing Policy attached to this report to 

come into effect immediately following the expiry of the current 
Policy; and

(2) directs that the Operational Director – Legal and Democratic 
Services publishes the Statement in accordance with section 5 
Licensing Act 2003.

3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1    At its meeting held on 17 June 2015 the Regulatory Committee considered a 
report on the Statement of Licensing Policy which must be adopted by the 
Council to replace the current policy which will expire in January 2016. The 
current Statement of Licensing Policy is due to expire at midnight on 6th January 
2016 and the new Statement of Licensing Policy must be in place on 7th January 
2016. 

3.2   The Committee authorised the Operational Director Legal and Democratic 
Services (OD-LD) to undertake a consultation exercise in respect of the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy in accordance with section 5 Licensing 
Act 2003.

3.3  The consultation exercise was completed at the end of July 2015.

3.4   At its meeting on 16 September 2015 the Committee received a report on the 
responses received during the consultation exercise. Having considered the 
responses the Committee resolved to recommend the draft Statement with 
amendments for adoption by the Council. The amended statement is attached 
as Appendix 1.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1    Once it comes into effect, the Statement of Licensing Policy will be used in 
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.



5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no other implications arising out of this report.

6 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCILS PRIORITIES
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton
The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy operates under a separate 
statutory code but since it involves licensable activities it is designed to 
contribute to licensing objective of the protection of children from harm.

6.2 Employment Learning and Skills in Halton
N/A

6.3 A healthy Halton
Health is not a licensing objective but to the extent that health impacts on the 
licensing objectives health issues may be taken into consideration. 
Nevertheless, it is recognised that Halton faces particular challenges around 
alcohol use. Halton has Local Alcohol Area Status and an adopted local 
Alcohol Reduction Strategy. 

6.4 A Safer Halton
The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy operates under a separate 
statutory code but since it involves licensable activities it is designed to 
contribute to licensing objective of the promoting public safety.

6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal
N/A

7 RISK ANALYSIS 
N/A

8 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
N/A

9.  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

This report is based on the Licensing Act 2003 and the Statutory Guidance issued 
under Section182 of the Act.  See also the Council’s existing Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 



APPENDIX 1

This Statement of Licensing Policy was adopted by Halton 
Borough Council on 

[14th October] 2015

LICENSING ACT 2003 

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

1. Introduction 

2. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) requires Licensing Authorities, 
in our case Halton Borough Council (“the Council”), to provide a 
Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy”)  before it can make any 
decisions on licence applications. 

3. The Policy is set out in this document. It details the general 
principles that the Council will take into account when making its 
licensing decisions. In drawing up the Policy the Council is required 
to have regard to Government Guidance (”the Guidance”) produced 
under Section 182 of the Act. If the Policy departs from the 
Guidance the Council must be able to justify its decision should 
there be a legal challenge. This Council believes that the Policy is 
consistent with the Guidance as well as with the provisions of the 
Act. 

4. The aim of the Policy is to promote the four licensing objectives 
set out in the Act, namely:- 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 
 Public safety; 
 The prevention of public nuisance; and 
 The protection of children from harm. 

5. The Council wish to promote these objectives whilst still 
encouraging a vibrant and sustainable entertainment and leisure 
industry. The Council recognises both the needs of local residents 
for a safe and healthy environment in which to work and live and the 
importance of safe and well-run entertainment and leisure facilities 
to the area. 

6. The Policy aims to provide guidance to applicants, responsible 
authorities and interested parties on the general approach to 
licensing in the area. Although each and every application will be 
dealt with separately and on its own individual merits, the Council in 
writing this Policy is offering guidance on the wider considerations 
that will be taken into account. 

7. The Policy comes into force on 7
th 

January 2016 and will apply for 
the five year period commencing on that date subject to any 



amendments or reviews which may be undertaken during that 
period. The Policy is intended for the guidance of the Council’s 
Regulatory Committee (which has responsibility for the Council’s 
licensing functions) as well as to assist applicants in presenting their 
application. It is not intended to limit the power or fetter the 
discretion of the Regulatory Committee who will listen to, and 
determine on its own individual merits, any application placed before 
it. 

8. Scope of the Policy 

9. The Policy covers applications, reviews, transfers and variations 
of licences for the following licensable activities: 
 The sale by retail of alcohol 
 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the 

order of a member of that club 
 The provision of regulated entertainment, and 
 The provision of late night refreshment 

10. Licensing Objectives 

11. The Council will carry out its functions under the Act with a view 
to promoting the licensing objectives, namely; 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public safety 
 The prevention of public nuisance, and 
 The protection of children from harm 

12. No one objective is considered to be of any more importance 
than any other. 

13. In carrying out its functions the Council will also have regard to 
this Policy and to the Guidance as issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 of the Act from time to time.  

14. Individual applicants will be required to address the licensing 
objectives and address the issues of the needs of the local 
community, the way in which the premises is to operate, the size, 
location and type of premises, and any entertainment which is to be 
provided. 

15. The Council’s vision as set out within the Corporate Plan 2011-
2016 and within Halton’s fifteen year Sustainable Community 
Strategy 2011–2026 is that:

“Halton will be a thriving and vibrant Borough where people can 
learn and develop their skills; enjoy a good quality of life with good 
health; a high quality, modern urban environment; the opportunity for 
all to fulfil their potential; greater wealth and equality, sustained by a 
thriving business community; and safer, stronger and more attractive 
neighbourhoods”.



16. The Council has identified strategic priorities and key themes 
that are set out in its Corporate Plan 2011-2016 and within its fifteen 
year Sustainable Community Strategy 2011 – 2026. These are:

 A Healthy Halton
 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton
 A Safer Halton
 Halton’s Children and Young People
 Environment and Regeneration in Halton
 Corporate Effectiveness & Business Efficiency 

17. Locally due to the high levels of alcohol-related harm Halton 
experiences the Halton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-2016 
includes the reduction in the harm from alcohol as a priority area. 

18. The strategy identified a number of issues which may be 
affected by the licensing regime in Halton including:

 A significant proportion of cases of domestic violence are 
alcohol related 

 Alcohol related crime and alcohol related violent crimes are 
worse in Halton than for both the North West and England as 
a whole

 Alcohol specific admissions (both among adults and those 
aged under 18) are much higher than the national and 
regional averages.

19. In addition due to the high levels of alcohol-related harm Halton 
was one of only twenty areas in the country to be awarded the 
status of being a “Local Alcohol Action Area” (LAAA). This award 
provided support from the Home Office and Public Health England 
during 2014/15 related to addressing the harm from alcohol across 
three areas – health, crime and anti-social behaviour, and 
diversifying the night time economy.

20. Working in collaboration a local alcohol strategy has been 
developed and agreed. The Halton Alcohol Strategy: Reducing 
alcohol-related harm across the life course, 2014-2019 makes the 
case that the impact of drinking on public health and community 
safety in Halton is so great that radical steps are needed to change 
our relationship with alcohol.

21. The vision of the strategy is to: 
“Enable people in Halton to have a sensible relationship with alcohol 
that promotes good health and wellbeing and ensures Halton is a 
safe place to live”.
22. In order to achieve this vision and minimise the harm from 
alcohol in Halton the strategy will seek to deliver three interlinked 
outcomes: 
1. Reduce alcohol-related health harms
2. Reduce alcohol-related crime, antisocial behaviour and 

domestic abuse
3. Establish a diverse, vibrant and safe night-time economy.
 



     22. So far as is consistent with the licensing objectives, the Council 
will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting these 
priorities and themes (including priorities and themes which may be 
adopted from time to time). 

23. The Council will encourage the provision of a wide range of 
entertainment activities within the Halton area including promotion of 
live music, dance and so on, in the interests of broadening cultural 
opportunities within the local community. 

24. General principles

25. If an application for a premises licence or club premises 
certificate has been made lawfully and there have been no 
representations from responsible authorities or other persons, the 
licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule and 
relevant mandatory conditions. It is recommended that licence 
applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing their 
operating schedules.

26. Integrating Strategies 

27. The Council’s core plans and strategies are set out in the 
Corporate Plan and the Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

28. The Council will secure the proper integration of its licensing 
Policy with its core plans and strategies as well as its local crime 
prevention, planning, transport, tourism, equal opportunities, race 
equality schemes, and cultural strategies and any other plans 
introduced for the management of town centres and the night-time 
economy (as to which, see below). 

29. This will be achieved by ensuring that the Council’s Regulatory 
Committee receive appropriate reports on all relevant strategies, 
plans and policies. Many of these strategies are not directly related 
to the promotion of the four licensing objectives, but, indirectly, 
impact upon them. Co-ordination and integration of such policies, 
strategies and initiatives are therefore important. 

30. Many licensable activities take place at night-time: when much 
of the rest of the economy has closed down. It follows that 
licensable activities can contribute a very significant element of the 
night-time economy, particularly within town centres. Emerging 
Town Centre Strategies for Widnes and Runcorn will contribute to 
the development of the night-time economy and assist the Council 
in exercising its licensing functions. 

32. This statement sets out the Council’s general approach to the 
making of licensing decisions. It does not override the right of any 
person to make representations on an application or to seek a 
review of a licence or certificate where provision has been made for 
them to do so in the Act. 



33. Licensing is about regulating the carrying on of licensable 
activities on licensed premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary 
events within the terms of the Act. Conditions attached to various 
authorisations will be focused on matters which are within the 
control of individual licensees and others in possession of relevant 
authorisations. Accordingly, the Council will focus its attention on 
the premises being used for licensable activities and the vicinity of 
those premises. 

34. In addressing this matter, the Council will primarily focus on the 
direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed premises 
on members of public living, working or engaged in normal activity in 
the area concerned. Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for 
the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by 
individuals once they are away from the licensed premises and, 
therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, club or 
business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned. 
Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control and licensing law will 
always be part of a holistic approach to the management of the 
evening and night-time economy in town and city centres. 

35 The need for licensed premises

36. There can be confusion about the difference between “need” 
and the “cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives, 
for example, on crime and disorder. “Need” concerns the 
commercial demand for another pub or restaurant or hotel. This is 
not a matter for the Council in discharging its licensing functions. 
“Need” is a matter for planning committees and for the market. 

37. The cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed 
premises 

38. “Cumulative impact” is not mentioned specifically in the Act but 
means in the Guidance the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises 
concentrated in one area. For example, the potential impact on 
crime and disorder or public nuisance on a town or city centre of a 
large concentration of licensed premises in that part of the Council’s 
area. The cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion 
of the licensing objectives is a proper matter for the Council to 
consider in developing its licensing Policy statement. 

39. The Council will not impose any arbitrary quotas on numbers of 
licensed premises, nor will it impose any restriction or limitation on 
trading hours in a particular area. 

     40. The Council considers that there are presently no areas within 
the Borough of Halton which can be considered to be causing 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
However, the position will be reviewed should evidence be 
produced to justify a change in policy.



41. It should be noted that the absence of a special Policy does not 
prevent the Council or any responsible authority or interested party 
making representations on a new application for the grant of a 
licence on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 

42. Notwithstanding what is set out in this statement about other 
mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact, applicants will be 
expected to demonstrate (where appropriate) how their proposals 
are consistent with dealing with crime and disorder and nuisance in 
the vicinity of their premises. Attention should be paid to their 
proposals in respect of hours of operation and the management of 
their premises generally. Regard should be had to issues such as 
taxis and transportation and the pattern of licensed premises and 
food premises in the vicinity, and, not least, the distribution of 
residential premises in the vicinity. 

43. Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative effect 

44. Early Morning Restriction Order (EMRO) -  Police Reform & 
Social Responsibility Act 2011. An early morning restriction order 
(EMRO) is a power in the Licensing Act 2003 that will enable 
licensing authorities to restrict the sale of alcohol in the whole or a 
part of their areas for any specified period between 12 midnight and 
6 a.m. if they consider this appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The Council is not currently considering 
introducing an EMRO.

45 Late Night Levy.- Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 
2011. The late night levy (“the levy”) will enable licensing authorities 
to raise a contribution from late-opening alcohol suppliers towards 
policing the night-time economy.  It will be a local power that 
licensing authorities can choose whether or not to exercise.  It must 
cover the whole of the licensing authority’s area.  However, the 
licensing authority will also choose the period during which the levy 
applies every night between midnight and 6am and decide what 
exemptions and reductions should apply from a list set out in 
regulation. The Council is not currently considering introducing a 
Late Night Levy but the position will be reviewed should evidence be 
produced to justify a change in policy. 

46. Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general 
control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by individuals once 
they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond 
the direct control of the individual, club or business holding the 
licence, certificate or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is a 
key aspect of such control and licensing law will always be part of a 
holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time 
economy in town and city centres. Once away from the licensed 
premises, a minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully. 
The general public needs to be made aware that there is a much 
broader strategy for addressing these problems than the licensing 
regime of the Act. There are other mechanisms both within and 



outside the licensing regime that are available for addressing such 
issues. For example: 

 planning controls; 
 positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre 

environment in partnership with local businesses, transport 
operators and other departments of the local authority; 

 the provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi 
ranks, provision of public conveniences open late at night, 
street cleaning and litter patrols; 

 powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local 
authority area as places where alcohol may not consumed 
publicly; 

 police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and 
anti-social behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty 
notices; 

 the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of 
staff at such premises who is selling alcohol to people who are 
drunk; 

 the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in 
designated areas; 

 closure notices and orders under the Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014; and 

 the power of the police, other responsible authorities or a local 
resident or business to seek a review of the licence or 
certificate in question. 

47. These can be supplemented by other local initiatives that 
similarly address these problems. 

48. Licensing hours 

49. With regard to licensing hours, consideration will be given to the 
individual merits of an application. 

 The Council recognises that, in certain circumstances, longer 
licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol can help to 
ensure that concentrations of customers leaving premises 
simultaneously are avoided. This is necessary to reduce the 
friction at late night fast food outlets, taxi ranks and other 
sources of transport which lead to disorder and disturbance. 

 The Council also wants to ensure that licensing hours should 
not inhibit the development of a thriving and safe evening 
and night-time local economy. 

50. The term “zoning” is used in the Guidance to refer to the setting 
of fixed trading hours within a designated area. At the moment the 
Council sees no need to adopt such a policy. The Council has 
followed the advice in the Guidance and will not be adopting such a 
Policy within the Borough. However, stricter conditions with regard 
to noise control will be expected in areas which have denser 
residential accommodation, but this will not limit opening hours 
without regard to the individual merits of any application. 

51. Shops stores and supermarkets



52. With regard to shops, stores and supermarkets, the norm will be 
for such premises to be free to provide sales of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is 
open for shopping unless there are very good reasons for restricting 
those hours. For example, a limitation may be appropriate following 
police representations in the case of some shops known to be a 
focus of disorder and disturbance because youths gather there. 

             53. Mobile, remote, internet and other delivery sales
54. The sale by retail of alcohol is a licensable activity and may only 
be carried out in accordance with an authorisation under the 2003 
Act. Therefore, a person cannot sell alcohol from a vehicle or 
moveable structure at a series of different locations (e.g. house to 
house), unless there is a premises licence in respect of the vehicle 
or moveable structure at each location at which a sale of alcohol is 
made in, on or from it.

55. The place where the order for alcohol, or payment for it, takes 
place may not be the same as the place where the alcohol is 
appropriated to the contract (i.e. the place where it is identified and 
specifically set apart for delivery to the purchaser). This position can 
arise when sales are made online, by telephone, or mail order. 
Section 190 of the 2003 Act provides that the sale of alcohol is to be 
treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the 
contract. It will be the premises at this location which need to be 
licensed; for example, a call centre receiving orders for alcohol would 
not need a licence but the warehouse where the alcohol is stored 
and specifically selected for, and despatched to, the purchaser would 
need to be licensed. These licensed premises will, as such, be 
subject to conditions including the times of day during which alcohol 
may be sold. The premises licence will also be subject to the 
mandatory licence conditions.

56. Persons who run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery 
services’ should notify the Council that they are operating such a 
service in their operating schedule. This ensures that the Council 
can properly consider what conditions are appropriate. Premises 
with an existing premises licence, which choose to operate such a 
service in addition to their existing licensable activities, should 
contact the Council for its view on whether this form of alcohol sale 
is already permitted or whether an application to vary the licence will 
be required. Steps must be in place to ensure that any designated 
premises supervisor and members of staff involved with the delivery 
of alcohol to residential addresses are made fully aware of their 
responsibilities to ensure that no alcohol is sold to persons 
underage.

57. Protection of children from harm 

58. The Body the Council judges to be competent to act as the 
responsible authority in relation to the protection of children from 
harm is Halton Borough Council People and Economy Directorate: 
contact details are set out in Appendix A. 



59. The protection of children from harm includes the protection of 
children from moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes 
not only protecting children from the harms associated directly with 
alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to strong 
language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). The Council must also 
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when 
undertaking licensing functions.

60. The Council will give considerable weight to representations about 
child protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose 
functions relate directly to child protection, the Director of Public 
Health and Trading Standards may also have access to relevant 
evidence to inform such representations. These representations may 
include, amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms 
that alcohol can cause to underage drinkers and the impacts of 
parental drinking on children.

61. The Council considers that children and family groups in general 
should be encouraged to be present in places subject to premises 
licences unless the environment in those premises (by nature of the 
activities carried on) is unsuitable. As a general principle, the 
presence of children and family groups is felt to have a positive 
influence on the atmosphere within such premises and to produce a 
more balanced age range within the premises. 

62. The Council will not seek to limit the access of children to any 
premises unless it is necessary for the prevention of physical, moral 
or psychological harm to them. The Council will not attempt to 
anticipate every issue of concern that could arise in respect of 
children with regard to individual premises and as such, general rules 
will be avoided. Consideration of the individual merits of each 
application remains the best mechanism for judging such matters. 

63. The Act makes it an offence to permit children under the age of 
16 who are not accompanied by an adult to be present on premises 
being used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for 
consumption on those premises under the authorisation of a premises 
licence, club premises certificate or where that activity is carried on 
under the authority of a temporary event notice. In addition, it is an 
offence to permit the presence of children under 16 who are not 
accompanied by an adult between midnight and 5am at other 
premises supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises under 
the authority of any premises licence, club premises certificate or 
temporary event notice. 

64. Outside of these hours, the offence does not prevent the 
admission of unaccompanied children under 16 to the wide variety of 
premises where the consumption of alcohol is not the exclusive or 
primary activity at those venues. Accordingly, between 5am and 
midnight the offence would not necessarily apply to many restaurants, 
hotels, cinemas and even many pubs where the main business 
activity is the consumption of both food and drink. This does not 



mean that children should automatically be admitted to such premises 
and the following paragraphs are therefore of great importance 
notwithstanding the new offences created by the Act. 

65. The fact that the Act may effectively bar children under 16 
unaccompanied by an adult from premises where the consumption of 
alcohol is the exclusive or primary activity does not mean that the Act 
automatically permits unaccompanied children under the age of 18 to 
have free access to other premises or to the same premises even if 
they are accompanied or to premises where the consumption of 
alcohol is not involved. 

66. Subject only to the provisions of the Act and any licence or 
certificate conditions, admission will always be at the discretion of 
those managing the premises. The Act includes on the one hand, no 
presumption of giving children access or on the other hand, no 
presumption of preventing their access to licensed premises. Each 
application and the circumstances obtaining at each premises will be 
considered on its own merits. 

67. Certain areas need to be highlighted that will give rise to particular 
concern in respect of children. For example, these will include 
premises: 

 where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature 
are commonly provided;

 where there have been convictions of members of the current 
staff at the premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a 
reputation for underage drinking; 

 with a known association with drug taking or dealing;
 where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises 

(but not, for example, the simple presence of a small number 
of cash prize gaming machines); and 

 where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises 
is the exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided 
at the premises. 

68. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts to 
entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. The Council, 
applicants, and responsible authorities will need to apply common 
sense to this matter. However, such entertainment or services, for 
example, would generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, 
table- or poledancing, performances involving feigned violence or 
horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or 
entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

69. Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the 
licensable activities taking place on the premises. In addition to the 
mandatory condition regarding age verification, other conditions 
relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 

 limitations on the hours when children may be present; 
 imitations on the exclusion of the presence of children under 

certain ages when particular specified activities are taking 
place; 



 limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be 
given access; 

 age limitations (below 18); 
 requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, 

a combination of requirements which provide that children 
under a particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and 

 full exclusion of those people under 18 from the premises 
when any licensable activities are taking place. 

70. Conditions requiring the admission of children to any premises 
cannot be attached to licences or certificates. 

71. Where no licensing restriction is necessary, this will remain a 
matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club or person 
who has given a temporary event notice. Venue operators seeking 
premises licences and club premises certificates may also volunteer 
such prohibitions and restrictions in their operating schedules 
because their own risk assessments have determined that the 
presence of children is undesirable or inappropriate. Where no 
relevant representations are made to the Council, these volunteered 
prohibitions and restrictions will become conditions attaching to the 
licence or certificate and will be enforceable as such. No other 
conditions concerning the presence of children on premises may be 
imposed by the Council in these circumstances. 

72. In connection with the protection of children from harm, the 
responsible authorities include a body that represents those who are 
responsible for, or interested in, matters relating to the protection of 
children from harm and is recognised by the licensing authority for 
that area as being competent to advise it on such matters. The 
Council is a unitary authority and competent in this area. 
Applications will therefore not need to be copied to any other 
competent authority in this area: the Council will liaise where 
appropriate with its own social services department. 

73. Proof of Age 

74. It is unlawful for children under 18 to attempt to buy alcohol just 
as it is unlawful to sell or supply alcohol to them. It is also an 
offence for an over 18 to purchase alcohol for an under 18 – 
this is called proxy purchasing. To prevent such crimes, it may be 
necessary to require a condition to be applied at certain licensed 
premises going beyond the mandatory minimum requirements 
requiring the production of "proof of age" before such sales are 
made. This should not be limited to recognised "proof of age" cards, 
but allow for the production of other proof, such as photo-driving 
licences, student cards and passports. Trading Standards regulate 
the sale of alcohol to under 18s and can provide advice and 
materials relating to the prevention of underage sales. They can 
also provide free staff training.

75. Responsible authorities 



76. A full list of the responsible authorities in the area and 
appropriate contact details are set out at Appendix A. 

77. The inclusion of the health service as a responsible authority 
under the Licensing Act 2003, which occurred in 2012, enables 
health bodies to have a say in alcohol licensing. The Licensing and 
Public Health teams work together within the council to ensure that 
the health impacts of alcohol licensing are considered.

78. As there is not a specific licensing objective related directly to 
health within the current legislation, health bodies, when making a 
representation, are most likely to relate such representations to the 
objectives on public safety and protecting children from harm. This is 
likely to include the prevention of accidents, injuries and other 
immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption, such as 
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Anonymised data can be 
collected about incidents relating to specific premises or areas when 
representations are made. 
79. Health bodies hold valuable information which may not be 
recorded by other agencies, including analysis of data on 
attendance at emergency departments and the use of ambulance 
services following alcohol related incidents. Sometimes it may be 
possible to link ambulance callouts and attendance to irresponsible 
practices at specific premises.
80. The Director of Public Health is responsible for making 
representations and observations on applications on behalf of health 
bodies.
81 The Portman Group code of Practice on the Naming 
Packaging and promotion of alcoholic drinks

82. The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, 
a Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 
Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure that drinks are 
packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only 
to those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products 
under the Code are considered by an Independent Complaints 
Panel and the Panel’s decisions are published on the Portman 
Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If a 
product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in 
breach of the Code, the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert 
Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision and ask them not to 
replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-sale 
material, until the decision has been complied with. 

83. The Code is an important weapon in protecting children from 
harm because it addresses the naming, marketing and promotion of 
alcohol products sold in licensed premises in a manner which may 
appeal to or attract minors. The Council commends the Code and 
applicants will be expected to state how they intend to apply the 
Code. 

84. Plastic containers and toughened glass 



85. The Council has concerns about the dangers of bottles and 
glasses being used as weapons. It believes that the use of safer 
forms of glasses can help to reduce injuries and will expect 
applicants to state in their operating schedule what proposals they 
have to minimise such injuries through the use of safer forms of 
glasses, bottles and other means. 

86. Consideration will therefore be given to conditions requiring 
either the use of plastic containers or toughened glass which inflicts 
less severe injuries. Location and style of the venue, the activities 
carried on there, and the hours of operation, would be particularly 
important in assessing whether a condition is necessary: for 
example, the use of glass containers on the terraces of outdoor 
sports grounds may be of concern. 

87. CCTV 

88. The presence of CCTV cameras can be an important means of 
deterring and detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed 
premises. Conditions should not just consider a requirement to have 
CCTV on the premises, but also the precise siting of each camera, 
the requirement to maintain cameras in working order, and to retain 
recordings for an appropriate period of time. 
The police should provide individuals conducting risk assessments 
when preparing operating schedules with advice on the use of 
CCTV to prevent crime. 

89. Children and cinemas

90. In the case of premises giving film exhibitions, the Council will 
expect licensees or clubs to include in their operating schedules 
arrangements for restricting children from viewing age restricted 
films classified according to the recommendations of the British 
Board of Film Classification or the Council itself. The Council has no 
current plans to adopt its own system of classification. 

91. The Act also provides that it is mandatory for a condition to be 
included in all premises licences and club premises certificates 
authorising the exhibition of films for the admission of children to the 
exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with the 
recommendations given to films either by a body designated under 
section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 - the British Board of 
Film Classification is the only body which has been so designated – 
or by the licensing authority itself. 

92. Crime prevention 

93. Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises 
certificates will, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention 
strategies. For example, the provision of closed circuit television 
cameras in certain premises. Conditions will, where appropriate, 
also reflect the input of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership. 



94  Drugs

The Council recognises that the supply and use of illegal drugs by 
individuals is not relevant to all licensed premises but it is 
recognised that conditions may need to be attached to the licences 
for certain venues if representations are received. The aim will be to 
endeavour to reduce the availability, sale, and consumption of illegal 
drugs and to create a safer environment for those who may have 
taken them. Any conditions will take into account the relevant 
guidance and advice from appropriate bodies. 
The Council expects licensees of all venues to take all reasonable 
steps to: 

 Prevent the entry of drugs into licensed premises 
 Prevent drugs changing hands within the premises 
 Understand the signs of drug misuse in people so that 

practical steps can be taken to deal with any instances that 
occur 

 Have appropriately trained staff to deal with drug related 
incidents. 

The Council expects licensees to permit the access and use of drug 
dogs within the public and staff areas of the premises upon request 
of the Council and/or police involved in such an initiative.
The increasing prominence and dangers that can occur from Novel 
(New) Psychotic Substances (Legal Highs) is recognised and the 
Council would encourage all venues to include suitable steps within 
their Drugs Policy to deal with legal highs. The Council will consider 
whether it would be appropriate to impose a condition in order to 
promote one or more of the statutory licensing objectives where 
there is evidence to do so.
95 The control of excessive Alcohol consumption 
It is an offence under the Licensing Act 2003 to sell to, or obtain 
alcohol for, a person who is drunk on licensed premises. 
In practical terms this includes: 

 Selling an alcoholic drink to someone who you know is drunk
 Buying an alcoholic drink for someone who you know is drunk 

The Council expects all premises licence holders to take steps to 
control excessive consumption and drunkenness on relevant alcohol 
licensed premises. All serving staff should be trained in recognising 
the signs of drunkenness, how to refuse service and the premises 
duty of care. The premise should display prominent signage at point 
of sale that it is an offence to sell alcohol to anyone who is drunk.
This will reduce the risk of anti-social behaviour occurring both on 
and away from the premises after customers have departed. 
Premises licence holders are expected to be able to demonstrate a 
general duty of care to customers using their premises and others 
affected by their activities. 

96. Capacity limits 

97. Although most commonly made a condition of a licence on 
public safety grounds, consideration should also be given to 



conditions which set capacity limits for licensed premises or clubs 
where it may be necessary to prevent overcrowding which can lead 
to disorder and violence. Where such a condition is considered 
necessary, consideration should also be given to whether door 
supervisors would be needed to ensure that the numbers are 
appropriately controlled. 
  
98. Good Management 

99. Certain kinds of physical environment within places subject to 
premises licences (such as an over preponderance of vertical 
drinking) are generally thought be less conducive to avoiding crime 
and disorder. Good management and adequate staff training are 
vital. Where appropriate the provision of food in addition to alcohol 
can have a beneficial effect. Where food is provided it is good 
practice (but not mandatory under the licensing system) to have 
regard to current practice on healthy eating. The Council 
encourages premises licence holders to take an active part in local 
Pub Watch and Arc Angel schemes.

100. Another aspect of good management in relation to door 
supervision is to have proper systems in place to comply with the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001 and to think about how good door 
supervision systems can contribute to crime reduction both within 
and outside of premises. Applicants will be expected to have 
considered these and all relevant issues and to reflect these within 
their operating schedules

101. Cultural strategies 

102. In connection with cultural strategies, the Council will monitor 
the impact of licensing on the provision of regulated entertainment, 
and particularly live music and dancing. Only necessary, 
proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions will be applied on 
such events. Where there is any indication that such events are 
being deterred by licensing requirements, the statement will be re-
visited with a view to investigating how the situation might be 
reversed. 

103. The United Kingdom ratified the International Covenant on 
Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR) in 1976. Article 15 
of the Covenant requires that progressive measures be taken to 
ensure that everyone can participate in the cultural life of the 
community and enjoy the arts. It is therefore important that the 
principles underpinning ICESCR will be integrated, where possible, 
with the Council’s approach to the licensing of regulated 
entertainment. 

104. Transport 

105. The Council proposes, through its Local Transport Plan, to 
develop protocols to be agreed between the local police and other 
partners that have due regard to the need to disperse people from 
town centres swiftly and safely to avoid concentrations which 



produce disorder and disturbance. Applicants will be expected to 
have considered this issue, and their operating schedule should 
reflect their proposals for how they might assist in this process. 

106. Tourism, employment, planning and building control, and 
highways 

107. The following matters should be noted in relation to tourism, 
employment, planning and building control, and highways: 

 arrangements have been made for the Council’s 
Regulatory Committee to  receive, when appropriate, 
reports on the needs of the local tourist economy for the 
area to ensure that these are reflected in their 
considerations; 

     the Council intends to keep the Regulatory Committee 
apprised of the employment situation in the area and the 
need for new investment and employment where 
appropriate; 

108. Planning, building control and licensing regimes will be 
properly separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Except in 
cases where planning permission is not required, applications for 
premises licences for permanent commercial premises should 
normally be from businesses with planning permission in place for 
the property concerned.

109. Licensing applications will not be a re-run of the planning 
application and should not cut across decisions taken by the 
Council’s Development Control Committee or following appeals 
against decisions taken by that committee. Nevertheless, applicants 
should be aware that because the rules applicable and the range of 
matters to be taken into account are not identical, it is possible for 
planning permission to be granted and a licence application to be 
refused (and vice versa) in respect of the same premises. The same 
applies to the conditions which may be applied to planning 
permissions and premises licences. 

110. Similarly, the granting by the licensing committee of any 
variation of a licence which involves a material alteration to a 
building would not relieve the applicant of the need to apply for 
planning permission or building control where appropriate. 

111. Planning obligations under section 106 Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 warrant special mention. The Council as 
licensing authority can neither demand that a planning obligation be 
entered into nor be party to a planning obligation. However, 
applicants are free to enter into such agreements with the Council 
as planning authority if they so wish. Such agreements could 
potentially deal with a wide range of matters such as contributions to 
town centre policing and litter control. 

112. Proper integration will be assured by the Regulatory 
Committee, where appropriate, providing regular reports to the 
Development Control Committee on the situation regarding licensed 



premises in the area, including the general impact of alcohol related 
crime and disorder. This will enable the Development Control 
Committee to have regard to such matters when taking its decisions 
and avoid any unnecessary overlap. 

113. The Council’s Local Transport Plan is the mechanism by which 
the Council will work in partnership with all appropriate bodies to 
deliver effective local transport strategies. Effective strategies will 
include provision of night-time and evening services, where this is 
appropriate to the local situation. 

114. Where applicants seek premises licences in respect of 
pavement cafes and the like, they will have to have satisfied the 
Council (as Highway Authority) of the appropriateness and legality 
of any proposal prior to any application to the Licensing Authority. 

115. Promotion of Equality 

116. The Council recognises that the Equality Act 2010 places a 
legal obligation on public authorities to have due regard to the need 
to eliminate unlawful discrimination; and to promote equality of 
opportunity and good relations between persons with different 
protected characteristics. 

117. Local authorities are also required under the 2010 Act, to 
discharge the public sector equality duties. The Council is required 
by the Equality Act 2010 to publish information at least annually to 
demonstrate its compliance with the equality duty. Applicants will be 
expected to demonstrate that they have taken this issue into 
account. 

118. Duplication 

119. The Council will avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes 
so far as possible. For example, legislation governing health and 
safety at work and fire safety will place a range of general duties on 
the self-employed, employers and operators of venues both in 
respect of employees and of the general public when on the 
premises in question. Similarly, many aspects of fire safety will be 
covered by existing and future legislation. 

120. Conditions in respect of public safety will only be attached to 
premises licences and club premises certificates that are 
“necessary” for the promotion of that licensing objective and if 
already provided for in other legislation, they cannot be considered 
necessary in the context of licensing law. Such regulations will not 
however always cover the unique circumstances that arise in 
connection with licensable activities, particularly regulated 
entertainment, at specific premises and tailored conditions may be 
necessary. It should be borne in mind that an alteration is “material” 
for the purposes of the Building Regulations if it has the potential to 
affect structural stability, fire safety or access. 



121. The Council appreciates that regulations under which a fire 
safety inspection would normally be carried out do not apply to 
ships/boats unless they are in dry dock. The safety regime for 
passenger vessels is enforced under the Merchant Shipping Acts by 
the Maritime and Coastguard Agency who operate a passenger ship 
certification scheme. Accordingly, it will not normally be necessary 
to duplicate the controls imposed through the certification scheme. 

122. Certain health and safety issues can be taken into account 
despite apparent duplication. For example, applicants will be 
expected to consider the appropriate types of drinking containers 
(i.e glass or plastic) within premises or parts of premises. This 
example can only be considered under the crime and disorder 
heading. 

123. Standardised conditions 

124. The Guidance states that a key concept underscoring the Act 
is for conditions to be attached to licences and certificates which are 
tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the premises 
and events concerned. This can be important to avoid the imposition 
of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises 
where there is no need for such conditions. The Guidance states 
that standardised conditions should therefore be avoided and 
indeed, may be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives in any 
individual case. The Council will apply the general principles relating 
to conditions as set out in the Guidance. 

125. The Guidance states that it is acceptable for licensing 
authorities to draw attention in their statements of Policy to pools of 
conditions from which necessary and proportionate conditions may 
be drawn in particular circumstances. The Council considers that 
standardised wording of conditions (but not universally applied block 
conditions) are acceptable when dealing with the same or very 
similar situations. 

126. There will be circumstances where no additional conditions 
may be necessary where existing legislation and regulation already 
effectively promote the licensing objectives. Where conditions are 
imposed they will focus on matters within the control of 
applicants/licence holders.

127. Enforcement 

128. The Council has established a protocol with the local police on 
enforcement issues. 

129. In particular, this protocol is intended to provide for the 
targeting of agreed problem and high risk premises which require 
greater attention, while providing a lighter touch in respect of low 
risk premises which are well run. The Act does not require 
inspections to take place save at the discretion of those charged 
with this role. The principle of risk assessment and targeting should 



prevail and inspections should not be undertaken routinely but when 
and if they are judged necessary. This should ensure that resources 
are more effectively concentrated on problem premises. 

130. Live music, dancing and theatre 

131. The Council recognises that as part of implementing the 
Council’s cultural strategies, proper account should be taken of the 
need to encourage and promote a broad range of entertainment, 
particularly live music, dancing and theatre, including the 
performance of a wide range of traditional and historic plays, for the 
wider cultural benefit of communities. Concern to prevent 
disturbance in neighbourhoods will always be carefully balanced 
with these wider cultural benefits, particularly the cultural benefits for 
children. 

132. In determining what s should be attached to licences and 
certificates as a matter of necessity for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, the Council will be aware of the need to avoid 
measures which deter live music, dancing and theatre by imposing 
indirect costs of a disproportionate nature. It is noted that the 
absence of cultural provision in any area can itself lead to the young 
people being diverted into anti-social activities that damage 
communities and the young people involved themselves. 

133. To ensure that cultural diversity thrives, the Council will have a 
Policy of seeking premises licences where appropriate for public 
spaces within the community in their own name. This could include, 
for example, village greens, market squares, promenades, 
community halls, Council owned art centres and similar public 
areas. Performers and entertainers would then have no need to 
obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 
enable them to give a performance in these places. They would still 
require the permission of the Council as the premises licence holder 
for any regulated entertainment that it was proposed should take 
place in these areas. 

134. It should be noted that when one part of the Council seeks a 
premises licence of this kind from the Council in its capacity of 
licensing authority, the Regulatory Committee and its officers will 
consider the matter from an entirely neutral standpoint. If relevant 
representations are made, for example, by local residents or the 
police, they will be considered fairly by the Committee. Those 
making representations genuinely aggrieved by a positive decision 
in favour of the Council application by the Council in its capacity of 
licensing authority would be entitled to appeal to the magistrates’ 
court and thereby receive an independent review of any decision 
made. 

135. Live Music Act 2012 - Live music in licensed venues

136. Live music is no longer considered to be regulated 
entertainment in venues licensed for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in the following situations:



 when it is unamplified and takes place between 8am and 
11pm; and

 when it is amplified and takes place in the presence of an 
audience of 200 persons or less and is provided between 8am 
and 11pm.

137. The premises must be open for the sale of alcohol during the 
time that the live music is provided for the exemption(s) to take 
effect.

138. Any condition attached to the Premises Licence relating to live 
music will cease to have effect in respect of the live music when 
offered between 8am and 11pm, unless such conditions have been 
reinstated by the Licensing Authority as part of a Review Hearing.

139. Live music in venues which are not licensed

140. Unamplified, live music has been deregulated between 8am 
and 11pm in all non-licensed venues.
However, unamplified, live music after 11pm and amplified live 
music in non-licensed venues will still require formal authorisation 
from the Licensing Authority by way of a Premises Licence, Club 
Premises Certificate or Temporary Event Notice (TEN).

141. Preparation of Operating Schedules 
142. Applicants are strongly advised to obtain proper professional 
advice in the preparation of operating schedules and in particular 
are strongly advised to seek advice from the police on matters 
relating to crime prevention (including CCTV) to ensure a proper link 
between Crime and Disorder Strategies and Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Strategies. 

143. Contact Points 
144. Appendix B gives details of contact points where members of 
public can obtain advice about whether or not activities should be 
licensed. 

145. Administration, exercise and delegation of functions 

146. The Council’s Regulatory Committee (and Regulatory Sub-
Committees) will carry out all of the Council’s licensing functions 
under the Act except those relating to the making of statements of 
licensing Policy. A full delegation scheme is in place. The scheme of 
delegation relating to matters which can be dealt with by the 
Regulatory Sub-committee(s) and officers of the Council are set out 
at Appendix C. This follows the recommended delegation of 
functions set out in the Guidance and is carried forward into the 
Council’s Constitution. Whether delegated powers are exercised on 
any given occasion is a matter of practice adopted from time to time.

147. Monitoring/Review 



148. The Council will carry out a review of the statement in 
accordance with the Guidance and the Act. 



APPENDIX A 

LIST OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND CONTACT 
DETAILS 

List of Responsible Authorities (The Council’s website should 
be consulted to check for alterations to contact details)

           Relevant Licensing 
Authority

Licensing Section
Halton Borough Council
Municipal Building
Kingsway
Widnes WA8 7QF

Chief Officer of Police 

c/o The Relevant Licensing 
Officer

Cheshire Constabulary 
Headquarters
Clemonds Hey
Oakmere Road
Winsford
CW7 2UA

Fire and Rescue 
Authority

Cheshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority
Fire Station
Winwick Road
Warrington WA2 8HH

Public Health Authority

Director of Public Health
Halton Borough Council
Community and Resources 
Directorate
Town Hall
Heath Road
Runcorn WA7 5TD

Health and Safety 
Enforcing Authority1

Director of Public Health
Halton Borough Council
Community and 
Resources Directorate
Town Hall
Heath Road
Runcorn WA7 5TD

Local Planning Authority

Halton Borough Council
Planning Department
Municipal Building
Kingsway
Widnes WA8 7QF 

Authority exercising 
functions in relation to 
minimising or 
preventing the risk of 
pollution of the 
environment or of harm 
to human health

Director of Public Health
Halton Borough Council
Community and 

Recognised Child Protection 
Body

Halton Borough Council 
People and Economy  

Directorate
c/o Legal Services
Municipal Building 
Kingsway
Widnes WA8 7QF
 

1 In some cases this may be the Health & Safety Executive. If in doubt please contact the 
Council.



Resources Directorate
Town Hall
Heath Road
Runcorn WA7 5TD
Local Weights and Measures 
Authority

Principal Trading 
Standards Officer
Halton Borough Council
Town Hall
Heath Road 
Runcorn
WA7 5TD
 
NOTE
If the premises are 
situated in one or more 
licensing authority areas, 
send the application and 
supporting documents to 
each additional licensing 
authority.
Please check with the 
Licensing Section if you 
require further advice.
 

Vessels 

Where applications relate to vessels additional responsible 
authorities will be involved (depending on the circumstances) as set 
out below. 

1) The navigation authority in relation to the waters where the vessel 
is usually moored or berthed or any waters where it is proposed 
to be navigated when it is used for licensable activities. 

2) Environment Agency. 
3) Canal & River Trust (formerly the British Waterways Board)2.
4) The Secretary of State for Transport through the Maritime and 

Coastguard Agency. 

Advice should be sought from the Licensing Authority regarding the 
relevant additional responsible authorities.

2 The British Waterways Board (Transfer of Functions) Order 2012



APPENDIX B 

CONTACT POINTS WHERE THE PUBLIC MAY OBTAIN ADVICE 
FROM THE COUNCIL 

Council Website www.halton.gov.uk 
Email address: legalservices@halton.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0151 511 7879
Postal Address:
Halton Borough Council 
Licensing Section 
Legal Services 
Municipal Building 
Kingsway 
Widnes 
WA8 7QF 







REPORT TO: Council

DATE: 14 October 2015

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Policy & Resources

PORTFOLIO: Resources

SUBJECT: Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Gambling    
Policy

WARDS: Boroughwide

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To adopt the Statement of Gambling Policy.

2. RECOMMENDED: That the Council:
(1) adopts the Statement of Gambling Policy attached to this report 
to come into effect immediately following the expiry of the current 
Policy; and

(2) directs that the Operational Director – Legal and Democratic 
Services publishes the Statement in accordance with section 349 
Gambling Act 2005 and the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority 
Policy Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006.

3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1    At its meeting held on 17 June 2015 the Regulatory Committee considered a 
report on the Statement of Gambling Policy which must be adopted by the 
Council to replace the current policy which will expire in January 2016. The 
current Statement of Gambling Policy is due to expire at midnight on 30th 
January 2016 and the new Statement of Gambling Policy must be in place on 
31st January 2016. 

3.2   The Committee authorised the Operational Director Legal and Democratic 
Services (OD-LD) to undertake a consultation exercise in respect of the 
Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy in accordance with section 349 
Gambling Act 2005.

3.3   The consultation exercise was completed at the end of July 2015.

3.4   At its meeting on 16 September 2015 the Committee received a report on the  
consultation exercise. No responses were received by the Council which was 
interpreted as meaning that there was general satisfaction with the draft 
statement. The Committee resolved to recommend the draft Statement for 
adoption by the Council. The statement is attached as Appendix 1.



4.        POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1   Once it comes into effect, the Statement of Gambling Policy will be used in 
accordance with the Gambling Act 2005.

5.        OTHER IMPLICATIONS

5.1   There are no other implications arising out of this report.

6 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCILS PRIORITIES
6.1        Children and Young People in Halton 
The Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy operates under a separate 
statutory code but since it involves licensable activities it is designed to 
contribute to licensing objective of the protection of children from harm.

6.2        Employment Learning and Skills in Halton
               N/A

6.3        A healthy Halton 
               N/A

6.4        A Safer Halton 
              N/A

6.5        Halton’s Urban Renewal
               N/A

7       RISK ANALYSIS
         N/A

8 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
N/A

9.  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D LOCAL       
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972    

This report is based on the Gambling Act 2005. See also the Council’s existing 
Statement of Gambling Policy.



Halton Borough Council 
STATEMENT OF 
GAMBLING POLICY 
Gambling Act 2005

Approved by Halton Borough 
Council on        2015        
(Minute      )

Date coming into effect: 
31st January 2016

APPENDIX 1

Contents
Part A
1. The licensing objectives
2. Introduction
3. Declaration
4. Competent authority for protection of children from harm

5. Interested parties
6. Exchange of information
7. Inspection and criminal proceedings
8. Licensing authority functions
Part B - Premises licences
1. General Principles
2. Adult Gaming Centres
 3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres
4. Casinos
5. Bingo
6. Betting premises
7.Tracks 
8. Travelling fairs
9. Provisional Statements
10. Reviews
Part C – Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use 
Notices
1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine 
permits
2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits
3. Prize Gaming Permits 
4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits
5. Temporary Use Notices
6. Occasional Use Notices
Part D – Contact Details



PART A

1. The Licensing Objectives

In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, licensing 
authorities must have regard to the licensing objectives as set out in section 1 of the 
Act.  The licensing objectives are:
 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime
 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in 
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling”.  

2. Introduction

Halton Borough Council (“the Council”) is situated in the County of Halton and is a 
Unitary Authority. Halton Borough comprises the towns of Widnes and Runcorn and 
surrounding villages of Hale, Daresbury, Moore, and  Preston Brook. It is 
predominantly an urban area with a population of 125,773 (2011 Census).

Licensing authorities are required by the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a statement of 
the principles which they proposed to apply when exercising their functions.  This 
statement must be published at least every three years.  The statement must also be 
reviewed from “time to time” and the any amended parts re-consulted upon.  The 
statement must be then re-published.

The Council consulted upon this policy statement before finalising and publishing it.  
A list of the persons we consulted is provided below.  

The Gambling Act requires that the following parties are consulted by Licensing 
Authorities:
 The Chief Officer of Police
 One or more persons who appear to the authority represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s 
functions under the Gambling Act 2005

List of persons this authority consulted:
 Cheshire Constabulary
 Halton Borough Council Children & Enterprise Directorate
 Halton Borough Council Communities Directorate
 The Bingo Association
 Association of British Bookmakers
 British Amusement Catering Association
 Responsibility in Gambling Trust (U.K.)
 GamCare
 The general public through local advertisement and the Council’s website
 Cashino Unit 29-33a Forest Walk Halton Lea Runcorn 



It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any person 
to make an application, make representations about an application, or apply for a 
review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits and according to the 
statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.  

3. Declaration

In producing this licensing policy statement, this licensing authority declares that it 
has had regard to the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance 
issued by the Gambling Commission, and any responses from those consulted on 
the policy statement.

4. Competent authority for protection of children from harm

The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in 
exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body 
which is competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm.  
The principles are:

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 
rather than any particular vested interest group etc

The Council designates the Halton Borough Council Children & Enterprise 
Directorate for this purpose.

The contact details of all the Responsible Bodies under the Gambling Act 2005 are 
available from Legal Services Licensing Section.

5. Interested parties

Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a 
review of an existing licence.  These parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as 
follows:
 “For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an 
application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the licensing 
authority which issues the licence or to which the applications is made, the person-
a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 

authorities activities,
b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or
c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)”

The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in 
exercising its powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is 
an interested party.  The principles are:

Each case will be decided upon its merits.  The Council will not apply a rigid rule to 
its decision making.  It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to local authorities.  Note that decisions on 
Premises Licences must be “in accordance” with Gambling Commission Guidance.

The Gambling Commission has recommended that the licensing authority states that 
interested parties include trade associations and trade unions, and residents’ and 
tenants’ associations.  This authority will not however generally view these bodies as 



interested parties unless they have a member who can be classed as one under the 
terms of the Gambling Act 2005 e.g. lives sufficiently close to the premises to be 
likely to be affected by the activities being applied for.

Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as 
Councillors and MP’s.  Other than these persons, this authority will require written 
evidence that a person ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to the 
premises to be likely to be affected by the authorities activities and/or business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of 
these persons, requesting the representation is sufficient.
If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views then 
care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing Committee 
dealing with the licence application.  If there are any doubts then please contact the 
licensing department (insert contact details).

6.  Exchange of Information

Licensing authorities are required to include in their policy statement the principles to 
be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under sections 29 and 30 of 
the Act with respect to the exchange of information between it and the Gambling 
Commission, and the functions under section 350 of the Act with the respect to the 
exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the 
Act.

The principle that this licensing authority applies is that it will act in accordance with 
the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information which 
includes the provision that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened.  The 
licensing authority will also have regard to Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission to Local Authorities on this matter, as well as any relevant regulations 
issued by the Secretary of State under the powers provided in the Gambling Act 
2005.

Issues of confidentiality will be assessed on a case by case basis since the interests 
of data subjects must be balanced against the public interest. The fundamental 
principle which the licensing authority must adhere to is that it must act in the public 
interest. Data subjects can access information via the licensing authority’s contact 
details set out below.

7.  Inspection and criminal proceedings

Licensing authorities are required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005 to state 
the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 
of the Act with respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under section 
346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified. 

This licensing authority’s principles are that:
It will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities and as 
per the Gambling Commission’s   Guidance for local authorities, it will endeavour to 
be:
 Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary:  remedies 

should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised;
 Accountable:  regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to 

public scrutiny;
 Consistent:  rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly;



 Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user 
friendly;  and

 Targeted:  regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side 
effects 

This licensing authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory 
regimes so far as possible.  

This licensing authority will also, as recommended by the Gambling Commission’s   
Guidance for local authorities, adopt a risk-based inspection programme.  

The licensing authority’s Community Safety Team carries out inspections – often 
jointly with Gambling Commission enforcement staff.

The main enforcement and compliance role for this licensing authority in terms of the 
Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and 
other permissions which is authorises.  The Gambling Commission will be the 
enforcement body for the Operator and Personal Licences.  It is also worth noting 
that concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be 
dealt with by the licensing authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.  
This authority also understands that the Gambling Commission will be responsible for 
compliance as regards unlicensed premises.

This licensing authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the 
work of the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory 
functions of local authorities.

8. Licensing Authority functions

Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to:
 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take 

place by issuing Premises Licences 
 Issue Provisional Statements 
 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake 

certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine 
Permits 

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs 
 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed 

Family Entertainment Centres 
 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 

2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machines 
 Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 

sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, where more than two machines are required 

 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds 
 Issue Prize Gaming Permits 
 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices 
 Receive Occasional Use Notices 
 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences 

issued (see section above on ‘information exchange)
 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 

functions



It should be noted that local licensing authorities will not be involved in licensing 
remote gambling at all.  This will fall to the Gambling Commission via Operator 
Licences.

PART B
PREMISES LICENCES

1. General Principles 

Premises Licences will be subject to the permissions/restrictions set-out in the 
Gambling Act 2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default 
conditions which will be detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  
Licensing authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, 
where it is believed to be appropriate.

This licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about premises licences it 
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it:
 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission
 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and
 in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy

Definition of “premises” - Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  It is for the 
licensing authority to decide whether different parts of a building can be properly 
regarded as being separate premises and as the Gambling Commission states in its   
Guidance for local authorities, it will always be a question of fact in the 
circumstances. The Gambling Commission does not however consider that areas of 
a building that are artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as 
different premises.
This licensing authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s   
Guidance for local authorities which states that in considering applications for 
multiple licences for a building or those for a specific part of the building to be 
licensed, entrances and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more 
licences should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of different 
premises is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling area.

This licensing authority will also take note of the Gambling Commission’s   Guidance 
to local authorities that: Licensing authorities should pay particular attention to 
applications where access to the licensed premises is through other premises (which 
themselves may be licensed or unlicensed). 

Location - This licensing authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered 
with regard to the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the 
licensing objectives can.  As per the Gambling Commission’s   Guidance for local 
authorities, this authority will pay particular attention to the protection of children and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of 
crime and disorder.  Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards areas 
where gambling premises should not be located, this policy statement will be 
updated.  It should be noted that any such policy does not preclude any application 
being made and each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon 
the applicant showing how the concerns can be overcome.  



Duplication with other regulatory regimes - This authority will seek to avoid any 
duplication with other statutory / regulatory systems where possible, including 
planning.  This authority will not consider whether a licence application is likely to be 
awarded planning or building consent, in its consideration of it.  This authority will 
though listen to, and consider carefully, any concerns about conditions which are not 
able to be met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a situation 
arise.

Licensing objectives - Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with 
the licensing objectives.  With regard to these objectives, this licensing authority has 
considered the Gambling Commission’s   Guidance to local authorities and some 
comments are made below.

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime – This 
licensing authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and will 
consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it.

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way - This licensing 
authority has noted that the Gambling Commission in its   Guidance for local 
authorities has stated that generally the Commission would not expect licensing 
authorities to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair 
and open way as this will be a matter for either the management of the gambling 
business, and therefore subject to the operating licence, or will be in relation to the 
suitability and actions of an individual and therefore subject to the personal licence.  
This licensing authority also notes, however, that the Gambling Commission also 
states in relating to the licensing tracks the licensing authorities’ role will be different 
from other premises in that track operators will not necessarily have an operating 
licence.  In those circumstances the premises licence may need to contain conditions 
to ensure that the environment in which betting takes place is suitable.  This licensing 
authority understands that there may be further guidance from the Gambling 
Commission on this issue which it will have regard to, when available.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling - This licensing authority has noted the   Gambling 
Commission Guidance to local authorities states that the objective talks of protecting 
children from being “harmed or exploited by gambling, but in practice that often 
means preventing them from taking part in or being in close proximity to gambling.

This licensing authority will pay particular attention to any Codes of Practice which 
the Gambling Commission issues as regards this licensing objective in relation to 
specific premises such as casinos.  It is understood that a Code for casinos must:
 specify steps that the premises licence-holder must take to ensure that children 

and young persons (that is those under the age of 18) do not enter casino 
premises, or in the case of the regional casino do not enter the gambling area;

 amongst those specified steps, ensure that each entrance to the casino or 
gambling area is supervised by at least one person (“the supervisor”) who is 
responsible for compliance with the code of practice; and

 require that, unless the supervisor is certain that a person seeking admittance is 
an adult, evidence of age must be required of all those seeking to enter the 
casino or gambling area.



As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling Commission is 
not seeking to offer a definition but states that it will for regulatory purposes assume 
that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who 
gambling beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make informed or 
balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs. 
This licensing authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by case basis.  
Should a practical definition prove possible in future then this policy statement will be 
updated with it, by way of a revision.

Conditions - Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be:
 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility
 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises: and
 reasonable in all other respects. 

Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although 
there will be a number of control measures this licensing authority will consider 
utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the use of door supervisors, 
supervision of adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  
There are specific comments made in this regard under each of the licence types 
below.  This licensing authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her 
own suggestions as to way in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively.

It is noted that there are conditions which the licensing authority cannot attach to 
premises licences which are:
 any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with 

an operating licence condition 
 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 

operation;
 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the 

Gambling Act  2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for casino 
and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated and

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes

Door Supervisors - The Gambling Commission advises in its   Guidance for local 
authorities that licensing authorities may consider whether there is a need for door 
supervisors in terms of the licensing objectives of protection of children and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of 
preventing premises becoming a source of crime.  It is noted though that the 
Gambling Act 2005 has amended the Security Industry Act and that door supervisors 
at casinos or bingo premises cannot be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
This licensing authority may therefore has specific requirements for door supervisors 
working at casinos or bingo premises.

2. Adult Gaming Centres

This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises.  Appropriate licence 
conditions may cover issues such as:
 Proof of age schemes
 CCTV
 Door supervisors



 Supervision of entrances / machine areas
 Physical separation of areas
 Location of entry
 Notices / signage
 Specific opening hours

This list is not exhaustive.

As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this licensing authority will consider 
measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres:

This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.  
Appropriate licence conditions may cover issues such as:
 Proof of age schemes
 CCTV
 Door supervisors
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas
 Physical separation of areas
 Location of entry
 Notices / signage
 Specific opening hours

This list is not exhaustive.

As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this licensing authority will consider 
measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the 
Commission’s website to see any conditions that apply to operator licences covering 
the way in which the area containing the category C machines should be delineated.  
This licensing authority will also make itself aware of any mandatory or default 
conditions on these premises licences, when they have been published.  

4. Casinos

The Council did not make an application for new casinos under the Gaming Act 1968 
(prior to the deadline of 26th April 2006). Consequently ‘Section 4. Casinos’ is not 
directly relevant to this Statement but is included for the sake of completeness.

No Casinos resolution - This licensing authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ 
resolution under Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the 
power to do so.   Should this licensing authority decide in the future to pass such a 
resolution, it will update this policy statement with details of that resolution. 

Casinos and competitive bidding - This licensing authority is aware that where a 
licensing authority area is enabled to grant a Premises Licence for a new style casino 
(i.e. the Secretary of State has made such regulations under Section 175 of the 



Gambling Act 2005) there are likely to be a number of operators which will want to 
run the casino.  In such situations the local authority will run a ‘competition’ under 
Schedule 9 of the Gambling Act 2005.  This licensing authority will run such a 
competition in line with any regulations issued under the Gambling Act 2005 by the 
Secretary of State.

Betting machines - This licensing authority is aware that, as explained in the 
Gambling Commission’s   Guidance for local authorities: Section 181 contains an 
express power for licensing authorities to restrict the number of betting machines, 
their nature and the circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a 
licence condition to a betting premises licence or to a casino premises licence (where 
betting is permitted in the casino).  When considering whether to impose a condition 
to restrict the number of betting machines in particular premises, the licensing 
authority, amongst other things, should take into account the size of the premises, 
the number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the 
ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is 
an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable persons.

Credit - This licensing authority has noted that the Gambling Commission has stated 
in its Guidance for Local Authorities that section 177 does not prevent the licensee 
from permitting the installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the premises.  Such 
machines may accept credit cards (and debit cards) and the arrangement is subject 
to a requirement that the licensee has no other commercial connection in relation to 
gambling (aside from the agreement to site the machines) with the service-provider 
and does not profit from the arrangement, not make any payment in connection with 
the machines.  Guidance on the further conditions that may apply in relation to such 
machines will be included in the next version of this guidance

5. Bingo premises
This licensing authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states:
 Licensing authorities will be able to find information about the restrictions that 

apply in the codes of practice that will be published on the Commission’s website.  
 Further guidance will be issued in due course about the particular issues that 

licensing authorities should take into account in relation to the suitability and 
layout of bingo premises.  

Once this information is available, this licensing authority will consider its application 
to premises licences for bingo premises.

6. Betting premises

Betting machines - It is noted that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local 
authorities states: “Section 181 contains an express power for licensing authorities to 
restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in which 
they are made available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises licence 
or to a casino premises licence (where betting is permitted in the casino).  When 
considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting machines 
in particular premises, the licensing authority, amongst other things, should take into 
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for 
person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the 
machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) 
or by vulnerable persons.” 

Credit - It has also been noted that the   Gambling Commission Guidance states: 
section 177 does not prevent the licensee from permitting the installation of cash 
dispensers (ATMs) on the premises.  Such machines may accept credit cards (and 



debit cards) and the arrangement is subject to a requirement that the licensee has no 
other commercial connection in relation to gambling (aside from the agreement to 
site the machines) with the service-provider and does not profit from the 
arrangement, nor make any payment in connection with the machines. It is also 
understood that the Gambling Commission will be placing restrictions and 
requirements on Operating Licences for betting premises as regards credit and this 
licensing authority will consider the guidance when it is available.

7. Tracks

This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission may provide further 
specific guidance as regards tracks.  We have taken note of the Guidance from the 
Gambling Commission which highlights that tracks are different from other premises 
in that there may be more than one premises licence in effect and that the track 
operator may not be required to hold an operator licence as there may be several 
premises licence holders at the track which will need to hold their own operator 
licences.

There may be some specific considerations with regard to the protection of children 
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and this 
authority would expect the premises licence applicants to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming facilities.  
It is noted that children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas 
where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse racing 
takes place, although they are still prevented from entering areas where gaming 
machines (other than category D machines) are provided.

Appropriate licence conditions may be:
 Proof of age schemes
 CCTV
 Door supervisors
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas
 Physical separation of areas
 Location of entry
 Notices / signage
 Specific opening hours
 The location of gaming machines

This list is not exhaustive.

As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this licensing authority will consider 
measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

Betting machines - Licensing authorities have a power under the Gambling Act 2005, 
to restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances in 
which they are made available, by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises 
licence.  The Gambling Commission’s   Guidance will be noted in that it states: In 
relation to betting premises away from tracks, the Commission is proposing that 
licensing authorities should take into account the size of the premises and the ability 
of staff to monitor the use of the machines by vulnerable people when determining 
the number of machines permitted.  Similar considerations apply in relation to tracks, 
where the potential space for such machines may be considerable, bringing with it 
significant problems in relation to the proliferation of such machines, the ability of 



track staff to supervise them if they are scattered around the track and the ability of 
the track operator to comply with the law and prevent children betting on the 
machine.  Licensing authorities will want to consider restricting the number and 
location of betting machines, in the light of the circumstances of each application for 
a track betting premises licence.

This licensing authority also notes that, In the Commission’s view, it would be 
preferable for all self-contained premises operated by off-course betting operators on 
track to be the subject of separate premises licences.  This would ensure that there 
was clarity between the respective responsibilities of the track operator and the off-
course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises. 

Condition on rules being displayed - The Gambling Commission has advised in its 
Guidance for local authorities that licensing authorities should attach a condition to 
track premises licences requiring the track operator to ensure that the rules are 
prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that other measures are taken 
to ensure that they are made available to the public.  For example, the rules could be 
printed in the race-card or made available in leaflet form from the track office. 

8. Travelling Fairs

It will fall to this licensing authority to decide whether, where category D machines 
and / or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use 
at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to 
no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met.

The licensing authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the 
statutory definition of a travelling fair.

It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a 
fair, is per calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are 
held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the 
land.  This licensing authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that 
land which crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not 
exceeded.

9. Provisional Statements

This licensing authority notes the   Guidance for the Gambling Commission which 
states that it is a question of fact and degree whether premises are finished to a 
degree that they can be considered for a premises licence and that requiring the 
building to be complete ensures that the authority could, if necessary, inspect it fully.

In terms of representations about premises licence applications, following the grant of 
a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant authorities or 
interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern matters which could 
not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, or they reflect a change 
in the applicant’s circumstances.  In addition, the authority may refuse the premises 
licence (or grant it on terms different to those attached to the provisional statement) 
only by reference to matters:
(a) which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence stage; 

or
(b) which is in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s 

circumstances.



This authority has noted the Gambling Commission’s Guidance on not taking into 
account irrelevant matter: one example of an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood 
of the applicant obtaining planning or building regulations approval for the proposal. 

10. Reviews:

Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or 
responsible authorities, however, it is for the licensing authority to decide whether the 
review is to be carried-out.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the 
review is relevant to the matters listed below, as well as consideration as to whether 
the request is frivolous, vexatious, will certainly not cause this authority to wish 
alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or whether it is substantially the same as previous 
representations or requests for review.

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and
 in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy
The licensing authority can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any 
reason which it thinks is appropriate.

PART C
Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use Notice

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 
(Statement of Principles on Permits – Schedule 10 para 7)

Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it may apply to the licensing authority for this permit.  It should be noted 
that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for 
making gaming machines available for use (Section 238).

The Gambling Act 2005 states that a licensing authority may prepare a statement of 
principles that they propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant 
for a permit and in preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it need 
not (but may) have regard to the licensing objectives and shall have regard to any 
relevant guidance issued by the Commission under section 25.  The Gambling 
Commission’s   Guidance for local authorities also states: In their three year licensing 
policy statement, licensing authorities may include a statement of principles that they 
propose to apply when exercising their functions in considering applications for 
permits…., licensing authorities will want to give weight to child protection issues.  
Further guidance on the information that should be obtained from the applicant and 
others will be provided in the next version of this guidance.

The   Guidance also states: An application for a permit may be granted only if the 
licensing authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed Family 
Entertainment Centre, and if the chief officer of police has been consulted on the 
application.  Relevant considerations to take into account would include the 
applicant’s suitability, such as any convictions that they may have that would make 
them unsuitably to operate a family entertainment centre; and the suitability of the 
premises in relation to their location and issues about disorder.



It should be noted that a licensing authority cannot attach conditions to this type of 
permit and that the statement of principles only applies to initial applications and not 
to renewals.  

Statement of Principles = This licensing authority will expect the applicant to show 
that there are policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm 
in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection 
considerations.  The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be 
considered on their merits, however, they may include BRC checks for staff, training 
covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the 
premises, or children causing perceived problems on / around the premises.

With regard to renewals of these permits, a licensing authority may refuse an 
application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds that an authorised local 
authority officer has been refused access to the premises without reasonable excuse, 
or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with pursuit of the licensing 
objectives.

2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits – (Schedule 13 Para 
4(1))
There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on 
the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D.  
The premises merely need to notify the licensing authority.  The licensing authority 
can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if:
 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 

licensing objectives;
  gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 

of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the licensing 
authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of practice 
issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 
machine has been complied with) 

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises

If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the licensing authority must consider that application based upon the 
licensing objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under 
Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005,  and “such matters as they think relevant.”   
This licensing authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by 
case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines.  
Measures which will satisfy the authority that there will be no access may include the 
adult machines being in site of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the 
machines are not being used by those under 18.  Notices and signage may also be 
help.  As regards the protection of vulnerable persons this applicants may wish to 
consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations 
such as GamCare.

It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises 
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas.  Any such application would need to be 
applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Entertainment Centre premises licence.



It should be noted that the licensing authority can decide to grant the application with 
a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that 
applied for.  Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached.

It should also be noted that the holder of a permit to must comply with any Code of 
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 
machine.

3. Prize Gaming Permits – (Statement of Principles on Permits - Schedule 14 
Para 8 (3))

The Gambling Act 2005 states that a Licensing Authority may “prepare a statement 
of principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under this 
Schedule” which “may, in particular, specify matters that the licensing authority 
propose to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit”.  

This licensing authority has not prepared a statement of principles.  Should it decide 
to do so it will include details in a revised version of the policy statement.

In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority does 
not need to have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any 
Gambling Commission guidance.  

It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which the 
permit holder must comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach conditions.  
The conditions in the Act are:
 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with;
 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 

which the
 gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played and completed 

on the
 day the chances are allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in 

the premises on the day that it is played; 
 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 

regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); 
and

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits

Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may apply 
for a Club Gaming Permit or a Clubs Gaming machines permit.  The Club Gaming 
Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of 
categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance as set-out in 
forthcoming regulations.  A Club Gaming machine permit will enable the premises to 
provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D).

  Gambling Commission Guidance for local authorities states: Members clubs must 
have at least 25 members and be established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for 
purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations.  
It is anticipated that this will cover bridge and whist clubs, which will replicate the 
position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A members’ club must be permanent in nature, 
not established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally.  



Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs 
with political affiliations.
 
The Guidance also makes it clear that before granting the permit the authority will 
need to satisfy itself that the premises meet the requirements of a members’ club and 
may grant the permit if the majority of members are over 18.

This Licensing Authority is aware that: Licensing authorities may only refuse an 
application on the grounds that:
(a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club 

or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of  
permit for which it has applied;

(b)  the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young 
persons;

(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 
applicant while providing gaming facilities;

(d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or
(e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police. 

It should be noted that there is a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for premises which 
hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003.  As the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for local authorities states: Under the fast-track procedure 
there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, 
and the ground upon which an authority can refuse a permit are reduced and that the 
grounds on which an application under the process may be refused are:
(a) that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed 

under schedule 12;
(b) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 

other gaming; or
(c) that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the 

last ten years has been cancelled.

5. Temporary Use Notices

There are a number of statutory limits as regards Temporary Use Notices.  It is noted 
that it falls to the licensing authority to decide what constitutes a ‘set of premises’ 
where Temporary Use Notices are received relating to the same building / site.

6. Occasional Use Notices:

The licensing authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from 
ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.  The 
licensing authority will though need to consider the definition of a ‘track’ and whether 
the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.  

Part D
Contact Details

Please contact the licensing authority via the following email address and telephone 
number: Email - legalservices@halton.gov.uk; Tel: 0151 511 7879

mailto:legalservices@halton.gov.uk


The Following motion has been submitted in accordance with Standing 
Order Number 6.

Proposer: Councillor Harry Howard 

Seconder: Councillor Chris Loftus

Motion to council - Trade Union Bill

As a major employer in Halton, this Council recognises the positive benefits that arise 
from the relationship that we have with recognised trade unions and believes that the 
relationship between employers and their employees through their collective 
representatives would be damaged by reducing facility time for representatives of 
trade unions and by removing the ability of union members to pay union dues direct 
from wages, as proposed in the Trade Union Bill.

This Council believes that the Bill, far from assisting employer-employee relations or 
improving workplace democracy, is an ideologically driven attack on the fundamental 
rights and freedoms of workers and as such is a threat to our democracy.

The Council notes that the Bill and associated secondary legislation will:

 Allow agency labour to be used to substitute for striking workers, currently 
outlawed, which would be deeply divisive and, with agency workers often 
doing unfamiliar jobs, could pose a serious health and safety risk to 
themselves and others

 Introduce very high thresholds for industrial ballots, with an extra threshold in 
certain public services, without doing anything to improve the ability of 
workers to participate in ballots

 Severely restrict the right to picket and peacefully protest, including the use of 
social media

 Significantly reduces trade union facility time and withdraws check off union 
contributions in the public sector, irrespective of the wishes of the employer

The Government’s blinkered and dogmatic view fails to recognise that positive 
relationship between employers and trade unions benefits everyone. The employees, 
the employer and most importantly in Halton the recipients of our services.

This Council therefore
 

1) resolves to write to the Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and Skills 
stating the Council’s opposition to their Trade Union Bill, and

2) Calls on Government to scrap the Bill and all associated regulation/secondary 
legislation.

This Council will continue to recognise that trade unions form an important part of 
good relations with our employees and we believe trade unions are a positive force 
for good in the workplace. 








	Agenda
	9a 2015/16 Revised Capital Programme (Minute EXB 32 refers)
	9b Initial Budget Proposals 2016/2017 (Minute EXB 49 refers)
	9c Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy - (Minute REG 27 refers)
	9d Gambling Act 2005 - Statement of Gambling Policy (Minute REG 28 refers)
	12 Notice of Motion
	14a Signage at The Hive, Widnes Waterfront (Minute EXB 38 refers)

